
 

 

MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 

 
 

PLANNING AND 
REGULATORY FACT FINDING 

VISITS MEETING 
 

10.00 AM FRIDAY, 4TH OCTOBER, 2013 
 

LAND AT CARDIFF STREET, ABERCANAID, 
MERTHYR TYDFIL 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members of the Planning and Regulatory Fact 
Finding Visits are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct. 
  

 

3. P/13/0219  -  Erection of block of 3 No. garages  (Pages 1 - 6) 



 

 

4. Any other business as deemed urgent by the 
Chair  

 

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors C T Jones (Chair)  
 B E Mansbridge (Vice-Chair) 
 H Barrett, T Chaplin, E Galsworthy, A Jones, 

D L Jarrett, G Lewis, L A Matthews, L E Smart and 
S Williams 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203 
 

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203 

 
 



 
            

 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/13/0219 11th July 2013 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Erection of block of 3 No. 
garages 

Land At Cardiff Street 
Abercanaid 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Mr G Jones  
c/o Mr G. B. Worthington 
Unit 3, Creative House 
Rocky Road 
Penydarren 
Merthyr Tydfil   

 

 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
This application relates to a rectangular plot of land measuring approximately 6m in depth 
and 9.75m in width. The site is located in the residential area of Abercanaid. 
 
The site is bounded to the southeast by the highway of Cardiff Street, to the southwest by a 
pedestrian footpath, to the northwest by the side boundary of the residential property known 
as 33 Chapel Street, and to the northeast by the rear boundary of the residential property 
known as 32 Chapel Street. 
 
A two-storey building, constructed of stone and brickwork, with a ridged roof, occupies 
approximately 50% of the site area. This building has a garage at ground floor. The interior 
space has not been surveyed, but it is assumed the upper floor is used as storage. A 
window is located in the first floor side elevation. The remainder of the site is covered by 
grass and other low-level vegetation. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



A bus-stop is located at the southeast corner of the site, and the footway fronting the site 
has an existing drop-kerb. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a block of three garages. This 
proposal also incorporates the demolition of the existing building.  
 
The external dimensions of the proposed block of garages would be a maximum of 6m in 
depth and 9.15m in width. The block would have a ridged roof, with a maximum height of 
3.15m, which would be constructed of colour-coated, profiled metal cladding. The external 
walls of the block would be finished with a rendered and dashed, or tyrolean finish. The 
doors of the three garages would be 2.1m in height and 2.1m in width, and would comprise 
galvanised steel roller shutters with internally-mounted roller mechanisms. 
 
Councillor Harvey Jones has requested that this application be reported to the Committee, 
to ensure a full assessment of the proposal. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
P/13/0076  -  Erection of block of 3 no. garages 
   Refused permission 30/05/13 
 
P/12/0097  -  Demolition of existing garage and erection of block of 3 no. garages 
   Refused permission 25/07/12 & appeal dismissed 13/02/13 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
The following bodies were consulted and their responses are presented below:  
 
Engineering and Highway Manager  -   No objection 
 
DwrCymru Welsh Water    - No objection, subject to conditions 
 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Wales) Order 2012, letters were sent to the adjoining dwellings and a site notice was 
displayed in the vicinity of the application site. 
 

No letters of objection were received following this publicity exercise. 
 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006-2021 
 
Policy BW7: Sustainable design and place making. 
Policy BW12: Development proposals and transport. 
 

Page 2



PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Committee should note that a similar proposal (P/12/0097) was refused planning 
permission at this site in 2012, and was subsequently dismissed at appeal 
(APP/U6925/A/12/2187293). This proposal comprised a block of three garages measuring 
6.3m in depth, 9.45m in width, 2.6m in height at its front, and 2.4m height at its rear, with a 
mono-pitched roof. 
 
This proposal was refused permission for the following reasons: 
 

• The proposed block of garages, by virtue of their inappropriate siting in close 
proximity to the adjoining rear garden area of 33, Chapel Street, will result in an 
unacceptable level of overbearing on this rear garden area that will adversely 
impinge on the amenities of this neighbouring occupier. The development will 
therefore be detrimental to the living conditions which neighbouring occupiers could 
reasonably expect to enjoy, contrary to Policy BW7 of Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan 2006-2021 

 

• The proposed block of garages, by virtue of the poor and inappropriate design of the 
roof, constitutes an incongruous feature that fails to respect the general appearance 
and design of surrounding buildings, to the detriment of the character and the visual 
amenities of the surrounding area, contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan. Approval of this development would set an unacceptable 
precedent for other similar unsympathetic developments. 

 
The Inspector, when considering the proposal, did not agree that the block of garages 
would have any unacceptable overbearing impact, and stated that the impact on the living 
conditions of neighbouring residents would not be materially affected by the development. 
However, the Inspector stated that “there is little visual consistency or rhythm to the locality 
and a number of flat roof or mono pitched structures are evident, including garages 
opposite the site. However, the latter are generally small structures that are subsumed in 
scale to their predominantly residential context. By contrast, the length and depth of the 
garages, together with the single roof plane would result in a large bland building with a 
substantial and unrelieved mass of metal roof sheeting. Owing to this, and notwithstanding 
the private domestic nature of the development, it would be a visually prominent building 
with an overtly commercial appearance at odds with the predominantly residential character 
of its setting. For these reasons, I conclude that the scale and design of the proposal would 
harm the character and appearance of the area contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil 
Local Development Plan”. 
 
The Planning Inspector’s decision, and the comments contained within it, are material 
planning considerations which need to be taken into account, along with previous decisions 
made by the Local Planning Authority, in the determination of this application. 
 
Committee should also note that a further, similar proposal (P/13/0076) was refused 
planning permission at this site on 30th May 2013. This proposal comprised a block of three 
garages measuring 6m in depth, 9.45m in width, and 3.15m height, with a ridged roof. 
 
This proposal was refused permission for the following reasons: 
 

Page 3



• The proposed block of garages, by virtue of its excessive and inappropriate scale, 
constitutes an incongruous feature that fails to respect the predominantly residential 
character of its setting, to the detriment of the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area, contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development 
Plan. 

 
It is acknowledged that the proposal, subject of the current application, has addressed the 
issue of the design of the roof of the proposed garages, raised by the Inspector following 
appeal APP/U6925/A/12/2187293. It is considered that the ridged roof design of the 
proposed garages is more sympathetic to the character of the area. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the Inspector’s decision also raised the issue of the length and 
depth of the original proposal (P/12/0097), contributing to a large bland building. The 
Inspector stated that the existing garages in the area are generally small structures that are 
subsumed in scale by their predominantly residential context. The Inspector concluded that 
the scale and design of the original proposal would harm the character and appearance of 
the area.  
 
The proposal considered under planning application P/13/0076 reduced the depth of the 
proposed garages (when compared to refusal P/12/0097) by a maximum of 0.52m. The 
width (length) of the garages remained virtually the same as the original proposal. The 
height of the roof (to eaves level) remained virtually the same to the rear of the garages, but 
was reduced by 0.2m at the front. The maximum height of the mono-pitch roof of the 
original proposal was 2.6m, while the maximum height of the ridged roof of the P/12/0097 
proposal was 3.146m. This was not considered to have addressed the issue of the 
excessive scale of the building, as raised by the Inspector and was refused planning 
permission for this reason. 
 
The current proposal reduces the width (length) of the proposed garages by a maximum of 
0.3m, when compared to refusal P/13/0076. The depth and height of the garages remain 
virtually the same. 
 
The width (length) of the proposed garages has been reduced by 0.52 m, and the depth 
has been reduced by 0.3m, from the original proposal (P/12/0097). Therefore the scale, of 
the block of garages remains very similar to those considered unacceptable by the 
Inspector. As such, the proposal would result in a large and visually prominent building at 
odds with the predominantly residential character of the area, which would harm the 
character and appearance of the area. The proposal is therefore contrary to the decision of 
the Planning Inspector and to Policy BW7 of the adopted LDP.  
 
In conclusion, it is not considered that the concerns of the Inspector, which are material 
planning considerations, have been addressed in this proposal.  As such the application is 
recommended for refusal.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  BE REFUSED 
 
 1. The proposed block of garages, by virtue of its excessive and inappropriate scale, 

constitutes an incongruous feature that fails to respect the predominantly residential 
character of its setting, to the detriment of the character and appearance of the 

Page 4



surrounding area, contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development 
Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
GARY THOMAS 
DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICES 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 P/13/0219  -  Erection of block of 3 No. garages

